BOARD
INFORMATION
PACKET

Board of Public Utilities
Kansas City, Kansas

Regular Meeting of

March 2, 2022

ESOCIATION QF

ATER AGENCIES

Gold Award
for
Competitiveness
Achievement

Reliable Public
Power Provider




Table of Contents
March 2,2022

Agenda Item #IIL...cooviinniiniiiiii i e e e Approval of Agenda

Agenda Item #IV .................. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of February 16, 2022

Agenda Item #V..................Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 16, 2022

Agendaltem #V...oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir e e General Manager / Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #I1I



i

" Board of Public Utilities

Kansas City, Kansas

BOARD AGENDA

i

Regular Session
March 2, 2022 — 6:00 P.M.

I. Call to Order
II. Roll Call
David Haley, At Large, Position 2
Tom Groneman, District 2
Robert L. Milan, Sr., District 1
Jeff Bryant, District 3
Mary L. Gonzales, At Large, Position 1
Rose Mulvany Henry, At Large, Position 3
III. Approval of Agenda

IV. Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of February 16, 2022
V. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 16, 2022
VI Public Comments

VIL General Manager / Staff Reports

i. NERC Audit Preparation
il. Preliminary January 2022 Financials
iil. Miscellaneous Comments

VIII. Board Comments

IX. Adjourn



Approval of Minutes
Work Session 2-16-22
Agenda Item #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, February 16, 2022 at 4:30 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Thomas
Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant, and David Haley.

Ms. Gonzales called the Board meeting to order at 4:30 P.M. She welcomed all that
were listening to or viewing the meeting. She stated that the Board felt it was necessary to
offer the use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. Members of the
community who wished to speak to the Board during the public comment session must be
logged in to the Zoom meeting through the internet using their browser or the Zoom
application. Those wishing to offer comments during the public comments section could
click on the raised hand feature at the bottom of the application or window or press Star 9 if
connected by phone only. During the public comment section of the agenda, community
members would be asked to provide their name and address and had five minutes to speak.
As always, the public could also email or call the BPU with any concerns. The agenda and
presentations could be found on the BPU website or if they were using Zoom they would
appear on their screen. Ms. Gonzales introduced herself and the other Board Members along
with the General Manager, and Legal Counse].

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta Hinson,
Executive Director Customer Service; Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric Operations;
Jerin Purtee, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance; David Mehlhatf, Chief Communications Officer; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Dennis Dumovich,
Director Human Resources; Mark Masloski, Meter Data Management System Analyst;
Gabriela Freeman, Supervisor Customer Services; Doretha Davis, Supervisor Collections &
Lobby; and, Patrice Townsend, Director Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.
Ms. Gonzales called the meeting to order at 4:30 P.M.
Roll call was taken, all Board Members were present, Mr. Haley by phone until 4:51

P.M. when he arrived in person.

Page 1 0of3



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms. Mulvany
Henry and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Board Update/GM Update

There were no updates.

Item #5 — Cold Weather Rule

Mr. Johnson, Ms. Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service and Mr.
Mark Masloski, Meter Data Management System Analyst, reviewed with the Board, BPU’s
Cold Weather Policy in comparison to the Kansas Corporation Commission (KCC) policy.
The current BPU rule had been in place since February 2020. They compared weather data
and showed the variance between BPU cutoffs and KCC cutoffs from winter 2018 through
January 2022.

They also discussed the timeline from billing for usage to eligibility for
disconnection, the communication process to the customer, as well as how many disconnects
and how many reconnects take place. (See attached PowerPoint.)

Board discussion included:

o The 5% late fee was based on the current bill, not the previous balance.

e Disconnects are based on the National Weather Service forecast.

e Mr. Bryant would like the wording to be changed to the temperature falling below
33 degrees, not the current wording.

e Mr. Haley would like to see the utility be more forbearing. The next step could
perhaps be mitigating where the utility might be adversely impacted if we were to
move closer towards the KCC rule.

e Mr. Milan would like to see comparisons from more utilities and not just
rewording the policy based on one option. He also said that there would be
circumstances where common sense and flexibility needed to be used.

e Ms. Mulvany Henry felt that we needed to be more community oriented. She also
spoke about the fee’s charges by other utilities that we did not charge the
customer.

Page 2 of 3



WORK SESSION MINUTES — WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

e Ms. Gonzales asked if we needed to come up with a set number.

e Mr. Bryant said it was more about the wording around if the temperature was
going to fall below a certain number not, if we got to a certain temperature we
were good to move forward with disconnects.

e Mr. Johnson said that the Independence, MO policy was based on whether the
temperature fell below 32 degrees in a 24-hour period.

e Mr. Groneman reiterated the use of common sense as some situations could be
more extreme in temperature drops. He also said that luckily we were at the end
of the cold weather and that maybe over the next three to six months, we could
look at various policies and come up with something that we could all live with.

Mr. Johnson suggested that the next agenda item regarding Life Support be moved to the
Regular Session. The Board agreed.

Item #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:54 P.M. by Ms. Mulvany
Henry, seconded by Mr. Bryant and carried unanimously.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 3 of 3












































































































Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 2-16-22
Agenda Item #V



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, February 16, 2022 at 6:00 P.M. The following Board Members
were present: Mary Gonzales, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Thomas
Groneman, Secretary; Robert L. Milan, Jeff Bryant, and David Haley.

Also present: William Johnson, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief
Counsel; Lori Austin, Chief Financial Officer/Chief Administrative Officer; Johnetta Hinson,
Executive Director Customer Service; Jeremy Ash, Executive Director Electric Operations;
Jerin Purtee, Executive Director Electric Supply; Steve Green, Executive Director Water
Operations; Dong Quach, Executive Director Electric Production; Maurice Moss, Executive
Director Corporate Compliance; David Mehlhaff, Chief Communications Officer; Jerry
Sullivan, Chief Information Officer; Robert Kamp, IT Project Manager; Dennis Dumovich,
Director Human Resources; Sperlynn Byers, Acting Director of Information Technology; Mark
Masloski, Meter Data Management System Analyst; Gabriela Freeman, Supervisor Customer
Services; Doretha Davis, Supervisor Collections & Lobby; and, Patrice Townsend, Director
Utility Services.

A tape of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities.

Ms. Gonzales called the Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. She welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. She stated that the Board felt it was necessary to offer the
use of technology for staff as well as for the general public. Members of the community who
wished to speak to the Board during the public comment session must be logged in to the Zoom
meeting through the internet using their browser or the Zoom application. Those wishing to
offer comments during the public comments section could click on the raised hand feature at the
bottom of the application or window or press Star 9 if connected by phone only. During the
public comment section of the agenda, community members would be asked to provide their
name and address and had five minutes to speak. As always, the public could also email or call
the BPU with any concerns. The agenda and presentations could be found on the BPU website
or 1f they were using Zoom they would appear on their screen. Ms. Gonzales introduced herself
and the other Board Members along with the General Manager, and Legal Counsel.

Roll call was taken and all Board Members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of Amended Agenda

Ms. Gonzales said that the Agenda would be amended to add an item from the Work
Session.

Page 1 of §



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

A motion was made to approve the Amended Agenda by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Ms.
Mulvany Henry.
The motion was unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Approval of Regular Session Minutes of February 2, 2022

A motion was made to approve the minutes of the Regular Session of February 2,
2022, by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr. Haley, and unanimously carried.

Item #5 — Public Comments

Mr. Jared Emmons, 12208 Pebble Beach Dr., spoke about the cold weather presentation
from the Work Session. He felt that the issue was the temperature threshold that was being
applied. He also commented on the disconnect notices and thought it would be helpful to check
and see how many people have their phone number listed.

Ms. Tscher CeCe Manck, 212 N. 38" St., addressed the Board regarding meter searches
being conducted, and the one that was attempted at her home. She was told that it was BPU
property. Also, she spoke about her meter reading versus her bill.

Mr. Johnson wanted to know if it was a water meter.

Ms. Manck said that it was both water and electric. She also wanted to inquire why
someone would be responsible to purchase the meter if it was BPU property.

Mr. Johnson requested that Ms. Manck call Customer Service and speak with Ms.
Gabriella Freeman, Supervisor Customer Services, so that she could collect the necessary

information to look into this situation.

Item #6 — General Manager / Staff Reports

1. Life Support: Ms. Johnetta Hinson, Executive Director Customer Service and Mr.
Mark Masloski, Meter Data Management System Analyst, gave a PowerPoint
presentation to the Board explaining the Life Support Program process and what
devices qualified for the program. (See attached.)

Page 2 of §



REGULAR SESSION ~-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

Mr. Masloski and Ms. Hinson, Mr. Johnson, and Ms. Doretha Davis, Supervisor
Collections & Lobby answered questions from the Board regarding outage recovery
and payment delinquency process for the program and also consulting with experts
about possible device exceptions/additions in the future.

ii.  Preliminary December 2021 Financials: Ms. Austin gave a PowerPoint presentation
reviewing the financials from December 2021 with the Board. (See attached.)

ii.  Text Messaging Services: Jerry Sullivan, Chief Information Officer, gave the Board an
update on digitalizing the customer experience, not just with Customer Service, but
also Operations. The IT department began looking at this program in 2021. (See
attached PowerPoint.)

Mr. Sullivan and Mr. Lourens Fourie, Contractor - IT Project Manager answered
questions from the Board including questions about the opting in/out choices.

iv.  Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Johnson spoke about possible staff and Board
participation on some of the special committees being put together by the Unified
Government (UG). He would like the ones which included the topic of BPU to have
BPU representation.

Jtem #7 — Board Comments

Mr. Haley was looking forward to seeing what input we could have on the upcoming
UG committees. He thanked Ms. Austin and Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel for
taking time to orient him and bring him up to speed. He also spoke about policy review and
analysis. He would like to see an analysis of Board pay. He also asked what the protocol was
for attending the Chamber Congressional Forum.

Mr. Mehlhaff would get him information and clarified what attendance was included
with BPU’s Chamber sponsorship.

Ms. Lawson reminded that if four or more members of the Board attended a function,
Mr. Mehlhaff would need to put out a notice to comply with the Kansas Open Meeting Act.

Mr. Groneman thanked staff for the informative reports in the Work Session and
Regular Session. He also told everyone to be safe.

Page 3 of 5



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Mr. Milan said that he heard it commented, the Board needed a raise and that it was
going to be cold tomorrow.

Mr. Bryant spoke about the wide range of aspects and topics that it took to run the
utility and that each one was important to someone in the community. He wanted to thank staff

for being good stewards for the utility and our community.

Ms. Gonzales also wanted to thank all for the information provided to help the Board
make the right decisions for the community.

Ms. Mulvany Henry spoke about providing audio recordings of the meetings to the
public without someone having to make an Open Records Request. She asked Mr. Sullivan if it
was possible to upload the recordings to the website.

Mr. Sullivan said it could be done.

Mr. Bryant asked if they could be downloaded on the YouTube channel.

Mr. Mehlhaff would look at the options for getting the recordings on the website or
YouTube channel.

Mr. Johnson said that the Open Records Request was a good process but the we could
look at something different.

Ms. Mulvany Henry requested an update at the March 16 Board meeting.

Item #8 — Executive Session

Ms. Angela Lawson, Deputy Chief Counsel, proposed a motion for adoption as follows:

“I move that, after taking a five minute break, the Board go into Executive Session in the
4™ floor Video, excuse me, in the Board room to discuss confidential matters related to an
investigation of non-elected personnel, as justified under the personnel matters exception in the
Kansas Open Meetings Act; and the General Manager William Johnson, Deputy Chief Counsel
Angela Lawson, the Director of Human Resources, Dennis Dumovich and investigator and legal
counsel, Tyler Hibler, be present to participate in the discussion, all others to be dismissed from
the room and public electronic and telephonic transmissions cease, and that we reconvene in
Open Session returning to both electronic and telephonic broadcasting at. ..

Page 4 of §



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2022
STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)
Mr. Bryant asked how many minutes.

Ms. Lawson said 25 minutes.

She continued, “at 8:25 P.M.in the board room to either take action in an Open Session or to
adjourn.”

She wanted to restate for the record that it was to discuss an investigation of non-elected
personnel.

This motion was made to move into Executive Session by Mr. Bryant, seconded by Mr.
Groneman and carried unanimously.

At 8:25 P.M. the meeting was opened.

A motion was made to extend the Executive Session for 15 minutes to end at 8:40 P.M. by Mr.
Bryant, seconded by Mr. Milan and carried unanimously.

At 8:40 P.M. the meeting was opened.

Item #9 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Regular Session at 8:40 P.M. by Mr. Bryant,
seconded by Ms. Mulvany Henry, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 5 of 5















































































































General Manager /
Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VI



Pieliimina rgW@ln tiﬁiéig@gma nerallStatements

Unaudited
oirthie fenlod Ending
Januauy 3, 2022
Bliepatiedi By Aesounting




KANSAS CITY, KANSAS
BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

At

Preliminary January 2022
Financial Statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Combining Unaudited Balance Sheet
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Assets
All Operating Units
Electric Operating Unit
Water Operating Unit
Budget Comparison — January 1 thru January 31, 2022
Construction Summary — January 1 thru January 31, 2022
Financial Metrics

Debt Service Coverage

Statement of Cash and Investments

~

11

14

25

26

29






























o))



11



12



13



14"



1)



9T



LT



8T



67T



0¢



1¢



44



€¢



124



25



9¢

Certificate of Calculation
Of Net Revenues for the
Board of Public Utilities
For The Month Ended
January 2022

According to the requirements of the Supplemental Indentures, as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, dated as of June
1, 2014, effective as of December 8, 2016 and any Supplemental Indentures as defined in the Second Amended and Restated Trust Indenture, the
Board of Public Utilities is required to calculate the Net Revenues of the Utility System for the twelve month period ending with such calendar
quarter.

“Net Revenues” means the Revenues of the Utility System, less Operation and Maintenance Expenses.
Electric Water Combined

12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
January 31, 2022 January 31,2022 January 31,2022

Revenues ‘ $ 298,875,837 51,410,475 350,286,312

Operating and Maintenance Expenses (196,850,985) (28,474,022) (225,325,007)
Net Revenues h) 102,024,852 22,936,453 124,961,305

Maximum Annual Debt Service - Total Debt $ 44,880,036 11,909,679 52,206,664

Coverage - Electric/2029 Water/2022 Combined/2024 2.27 1.93 2.39

Maximum Annual Debt Service - Parity $ 44,668,378 8,402,282 47,988,426

Coverage - Electric/2030 Water/2022 Combined/2025 2.28 2.73 2.60

Ao (] st
Lori C. Austin

CFO/CAO



LZ

Total Utility Revenues

Residential Sales
Commercial Sales

Industrial Sales

Schools

Other Sales (1)

Wholesale Sales

Payment In Lieu Of Taxes
Interest Income and Other (2)
Bond Cost of Issuance
Deferred Revenue - Fuel/PP*

Less: Construction Fund Earnings

Total Revenues

Exhibit 1
REVENUES

Electric
12 Months Ending
January 31. 2022

Water
12 Months Ending
January 31, 2022

Combined
12 Months Ending
January 31, 2022

$ 74,604,922 24,741,473 99,346,395
95,338,157 11,149,203 106,487,360
40,143,708 5,781,028 45,924,736

9,177,453 600,526 9,777,979

322,510 594,676 917,186

36,474,008 1,299,601 37,773,609
26,655,478 5,400,513 32,055,991

6,445,307 1,843,455 8,288,762

9,718,934 - 9,718,934
(4,640) - (4,640)

$ 298,875,837 51,410,475 350,286,312

*Revenue deferred for Energy Rate Component (ERC) reconciliation adjustment (FAS 71)

“Revenues” mean all income and revenue derived by the BPU from the management, operation and control of the Utility System or any Project or other part

thereof, whether resulting from extensions, enlargements, repairs or betterments to the Utility System or otherwise, and includes all revenues received by the

BPU from the Utility System, including rates and charges imposed by the BPU with respect to the Utility System and from the sale and use of services and

products of such Utility System, and includes all income derived from the investment of monies in any of the Funds established herein (the Indenture of Trust

dated June, 2014) except those monies in the Construction Fund derived from Bond proceeds, but such term shall not include proceeds paid with respect to any

loss incurred by the Utility System covered by an appropriate insurance policy and shall not include extraordinary revenues.

Notes: (1) Other sales includes: highway lighting, public authorities, fire protection and other non-operating income

(2) Interest income and other includes: forfeited discounts, connect/disconnect fees, tower/pole attachment rental, ash disposal, interest on

investments and other miscellaneous non-operating revenues.



8¢

Exhibit 2

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Electric Water Combined
12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending 12 Months Ending
January 31, 2022 January 31. 2022 January 31, 2022
Operating Expenses* $ 254,186,032 42,236,518 296,422,550
Less: Depreciation And Amortization (30,679,569) (8,361,983) (39,041,552)
Less: Payment In Lieu of Taxes (26,655,478) (5,400,513) (32,055,991)
Operating & Maintenance Expenses $ 196,850,985 28,474,022 225,325,007

*Excludes interest expense on outstanding Revenue Bonds.

“Operation and Maintenance Expenses” means the funds necessary to maintain and operate the Utility System, including, but not limited to, amounts of money reasonably required to be set aside for
such items, the payment of which is not then immediately required, including all money necessary for the payment of the costs of ordinary repairs, renewals and replacements, salaries and wages,
employees’ health, hospitalization, pension and retirement expenses, insurance premiums, legal, engineering, accounting and financial advisory fees and expenses and the cost of additional consulting
and technical services, taxes (but not including payments in lieu thereof), other governmental charges, fuel costs, the cost of purchased power and transmission service, any current expenses or
obligations required to be paid by the BPU by ordinance of the City or by Law, to the extent properly aliocable to the Utility System under generally accepted accounting principles, the fees and
expenses of any fiduciary, including those of the Trustee hereunder, and any other costs which are considered to be Operating and Maintenance Expenses in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Operation and Maintenance Expenses do not include payments in licu of taxes, depreciation or obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, extraordinary or materially unusual or
infrequently occurring expense items, amortization of intangibles, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal or amortization of bonded or other indebtedness of the City or the BPU,
costs, or charges made therefor for capital additions, replacements, betierments, extensions or improvements to, or retirements from, the sale, abandonment, reclassification, revaluation or other

disposition of any properties of the Utility System, and such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized by the BPU.



6¢

Beginning Cash and Investments As of 01/01/22
Cash Receipts Year to Date
Cash Payments Year to Date

Cash and Investments as of 1/31/22

Restrictions of Cash and Investments
Customer Deposit
Self Insurance Reserve - Public Liability
Self Insurance Reserve -Workers' Comp
Debt Service Fund
Debt Reduction Fund
Rate Stabilization Fund
Improvement and Emergency Fund
Construction Fund 2016C
Construction Fund 2020A
Ongoing Construction Reserve for 2021
System Development
Remaining Operating Reserve Requirement
Economic Development Fund

Total Restrictions

Unrestricted Cash and investments

BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES
CASH AND INVESTMENTS

January 31, 2022

January 31, 2022

January 31, 2022

Electric Water Combined

S 57,922,666 23,511,027 88,159,214
30,093,550 4,083,542 34,177,092
(28,497,970) (2,684,672) (31,182,642)

S 59,518,246 24,909,897 84,428,143
S 6,103,680 1,300,817 7,404,497
800,000 200,000 1,000,000

880,000 220,000 1,100,000

19,792,195 4,201,310 23,993,505

- 6,290,000 6,290,000

9,156,273 - 9,156,273

1,350,000 150,000 1,500,000

709,157 - 709,157

6,205,413 - 6,205,413

4,653,000 682,485 5,335,485

- 10,819,732 10,819,732

22,973,313 1,000,000 23,973,313

350,000 150,000 500,000

S 72,973,031 25,014,344 97,987,375
S (13,454,785) (104,447) (13,558,232)

* The unrestricted cash balance represents the amount needed to fully fund the reserve funds as established in the BPU Financial Guideline Policy 02-100-007






